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Capital and largest city of Algeria, situated on the
narrow coastal plain between the Atlas mountains and the
Mediterranean. Founded by Arabs AD 953, Algiers was
taken by the Turks 1518, and by the French 1830. The
old town is dominated by the Kasbah, the place and pris-
on of the Turkish rulers. The new town, constructed un-
der French rule, is in European style.

Capital and largest city of Algeria. The site of Al-
giers was originally occupied by a Phoenician trading post
known as Icosium (according to legend it was founded by
20 companions of the mythical hero Hercules) . In 146 B.
C. Icosium became part of the Roman Empire, remaining
so until it was conquered by the Vandals in the 5th centu-
ry A.D. It was taken by the Byzantines in the 6th centu-
ry, and then by the Arabs in the 7th century.

The Casbah of Algiers

The city of Al-Jaza’ir was built on the ruins of the
ancient Roman city by the Berber ruler Bologhine Ibn Ziri
in about 950 and soon became an important trading cen-
ter. Until the 15th century the history of the city was
linked to successive conquerors and their dynasties, in-
cluding the Hafsids in the 13th and 15th centuries and the
Merinids in the 14th century.

The Spanish seized Al-Jaza’ir in 1510, but in 1518
the city declared itself a part of the Ottoman Empire. Cit-
izens sought out the noted pirate Barbarossa to drive the
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Spanish out, and he finally wrested control of Al-Jaza’ir

and the islands of Algiers (in the harbor) from them in -
#529.

Al-Jaza’ ir was named the capital city by the Otto-
man sultan. A citadel and a defensive wall were erected,
and the city became the bridgehead of the western Medi-
terranean, as well as the base of operations for Barbarossa
and other “Barbary” pirates. For three centuries the city
enjoyed great economic prosperity, due to its importance
as a Mediterranean shipping center and to the pirates who
called its harbor home.

It was not until the French conquered Al-Jaza’ir, on
June 14, 1830, that the city ceased being a naval base
for piracy. What was initially intended as a limited milit-
ary occupation ended up lasting 132 years, until indepen-
dence was gained in 1962. Throughout the French colo-
nial period the city underwent dramatic changes. Its name
was changed to Algiers (the French “translation” of the
Arabic name ). The Casbah walls were torn down and
wide European-style boulevards replaced many of the
city’ s winding streets and alleyways.

Algiers played an important role in World War II as
the headquarters of De Gaulle’s Free French Army, and
remained an important operations center until the conclu-
sion of the war. Following the war’s end Algeria, like
many colonial nations around the world, began stirring for
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independence. By 1956 an all-out war for independence
was being fought, with much of the fighting occurring in
Algiers (seat of the French colonial government). The
battle finally ended in 1962 and Algeria became an inde-
pendent nation, with Algiers as its capital .
Business center of “new” Algiers

The modern city of Algiers consists of two parts. The
lower, French-built city, with wide boulevards and all the
cultural trappings from colonialism (an opera house, the-
aters, museums, etc.), occupies the “lower part” of the
city. The “new city” is also the site of many major educa-
tional institutions, including the University of Algiers.

The Casbah, or “old city,” forms the upper part of
the city, occupying a triangular area between the citadel®
and the seaside. Retaining much of its Turkish origins,
the Casbah is replete with® narrow and tortuous® streets
and lanes, cut with stairs. Occasionally it opens up into
urban squares, such as the Cheik Ben Badis, which is
the center of the old city. Most of the city’ s impressive
(and oldest) monuments and mosques are located within
the Casbah, including the Great Mosque (11th—14th
centuries) , The Sidi Abd-al-Rahman Mosque (18th cen-

O citadel . 3R 4R , B3
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tury ), the Ketchaoua Mosque (18th—19th centuries )
and the Dar Aziz Bent El Rey Palace (16th century) .

Modern Algiers is the main Mediterranean ports of
northwest Africa, making it a major shipping center and a
principal Mediterranean refueling station. It has a major
international airport and is the hub of a network of rail-
ways and roads.

Museums in Algiers

The National Museum of Antiquities houses antique
mosaics, Roman glass work and Islamic works of art. An
Ottoman palace built in 1570 now houses the Museum of
Popular Arts and Traditions, which has on display indige-
nous arts and crafts, including carpets, jewelry, ceramics
and furniture. The former president’s palace is now the
home of both the History Museum, which contains a dis-
play of Ottoman era swords and jewelry (among other
items) and the Natural History Museum which contains
displays on flora and fauna from around the world.

An impressive collection of indigenous artifacts from
various regions of Algeria is housed in a Moorish-style
mansion. The Bardo Museum also features exhibits on
prehistoric findings and ethnography. The Jihad Museum,
housed in a building directly beneath the Martyr’s Monu-
ment, presents a historical exhibition of Algeria’s struggle
for independence .

Across the Plaza from the Jihad Museum is the War
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Museum, which contains a number of objects from the
same period as the Jihad’s collection, including a genu-
ine guillotine® and a city plan of Algiers circa® 1830.
The Museum of Fine Arts contains a collection of
European paintings as well as works of modemn Algerian

artists.
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Capital of the Netherlands. Canals cut through the
city link it with the North Sea and the Rhine, and as a
port it is second only Rotterdam. There is ship-building,
printing, food processing, banking, and insurance. Art
galleries include Rijksmuseum, Stedelijk, "Vincent Van
Gogh Museum, and Rembrandt house. Notable also are
the Royal Palace (1655), and the Anne Frank house .

AMSTERDAM is a beguiling® capital, a compact
mix of the provincial and the cosmopolitan. It has a wel-
coming attitude towards visitors, and a uniquely youthful
orientation®. For many, however, its world-class muse-
ums and galleries notably the Rijksmuseum, with its col-
lection of seventeenth-century Dutch paintings, and the
Van Gogh Museum are reason enough to visit .

As the name suggests, Amsterdam was founded on a
dam on the river Amstel, in the thirteenth century. Dur-
ing the Reformation it rose in stature, taking trade from
Antwerp and becoming a haven for its religious refugees .
Having shaken off the yoke of the Spanish, the city went
from strength to strength in the seventeenth century, be-
coming the center of a vast trading empire with colonies in

southeast Asia. Amsterdam accommodated its expansion
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with the cobweb® of canals that gives the city its distinc-
tive and elegant shape today .

Come the 1700s, Amsterdam went into gentle de-
cline, re-emerging as a fashionable focus for the alterna-
tive movements of the 1960s. Despite an Eighties back-
lash, the city still fulfils this role with its buzz of open-air
summer events, intimate clubs and bars, and relaxed atti-
tude to soft drugs. Above all, Amsterdam remains one of
Europe’s best cities simply to be.

Old South and the Major Museums

Immediately south of Leidseplein, the Vondelpark is
the city’ s most enticing park, named after the seven-
teenth-century Dutch poet Joost van der Vondel and a reg-
ular forum for drama and other performance arts on sum-
mer weekends, when young Amsterdam flocks here to
meet friends, laze by the lake and listen to music in
June, July and August bands give free concerts here every
Sunday at 2 pm. Southeast of the park is one of Amster-
dam’ s better-heeled residential districts, with designer
shops and delis® along chic® P.C. Hooftstraat and Van
Baerlestraat and some of the city’ s major museums

grouped around the grassy wedge of Museumplein.

@ cobweb Ik [
@ delis BRJE
® chic BB



